
City Council 
Rick Thomas, Mayor 

David Vodden, Vice Mayor 
Gary Hansen, Council Member 
Jeff Williams, Council Member 

Casey Hofhenke, Council Member 

City Manager 
Marti Brown 

City Clerk 
Vacant 

Willows City Council 
Regular Meeting 
April 25, 2023 
Willows City Hall 
6:00 PM – Regular Session 

201 North Lassen Street 
Willows, CA 95988 

(530) 934-7041
Agenda 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

5. PRESENTATION
a. City Swimming Pool – Ad Hoc Committee Update

Contacts: Vice-Mayor Vodden and Councilmember Hofhenke, Swimming Pool Ad Hoc
Committee Members

6. PUBLIC COMMENT & CONSENT CALENDAR FORUM
All matters on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and are approved by one motion and vote,
unless Councilmembers or the City Manager first requests that a matter be removed for separate
discussion and action. Individuals wishing to address the City Council concerning Consent Calendar
items or regarding matters that are not already on the agenda are invited to make oral comments of
up to three minutes at this time. Please address your comments to the Mayor and Councilmembers,
and not to staff and/or the audience. By State law, the Council is not permitted to undertake any
action or discussion on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. If you have any documentation
that you would like distributed to the City Council, please mail it to the Interim City Clerk at 201 North
Lassen Street, Willows, CA 95988 or email it to: cityclerk@cityofwillows.org.

a. Register Approval
Recommended Action: Approve general checking, payroll, and direct deposit check registers.
Contact: Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org

b. Minutes Approval
Recommended Action: Approve minutes of the April 11 and April 18, 2023, City Council
meetings.
Contact: Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org

1

mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org


WILLOWS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 2 

c. Annual Weed and Garbage Abatement Schedule
Recommended Action: Adopt resolution and approve the Weed and Garbage Abatement 
Schedule for the 2023 Fire Season.
Contact: Nate Monck, Fire Chief, nmonck@cityofwillows.org

d. Approve Award of Bid - Grant Funded Staff Vehicle Upfit
Recommended Action:  Approve award of bid and authorize the City Manager, or her designee, 
to purchase the equipment listed in estimate 301 from Superior Installs.
Contact: Nate Monck, Fire Chief, nmonck@cityofwillows.org

e. Bid Award to Paint Fire Engine #5
Recommended Action: Approve attached recommended bid and authorize the City Manager, 
or her designee, to execute a contract and scope of work as identified in estimate 0007 to RJL 
Truck and Tractor.
Contact: Nate Monck, Fire Chief, nmonck@cityofwillows.org 

f. Legal Services Agreement for City Attorney Services
Recommended Action:  Approve the Legal Services Agreement for City Attorney services
(Attachment 1) between the City of Willows and Prentice | Long, PC.
Contact:  Rick Thomas, Mayor, rthomas@cityofwillows.org

7. COMMENTS & REPORTS
a. City Council Correspondence

Letter from Mr. Brad Eidman regarding conversion of existing single-family residence at
118 North Lassen Street.

b. City Council Comments & Reports

8. ADJOURNMENT

This agenda was posted on April 21, 2023. 

______________________________ 
Marti Brown,  City Manager 

A complete agenda packet, including staff reports and back-up information, is available for public inspection during normal work hours at City Hall 
or the Willows Public Library at 201 North Lassen Street in Willows or on the City’s website at www.cityofwillows.org. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Willows will make available to members of the public any special assistance 
necessary to participate in this meeting.  If requested, the agenda shall be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a 

disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132). The public should contact the City Clerk’s 
office at 934-7041 to make such a request.  Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to 

ensure accessibility to this meeting. 

The City of Willows is an Equal Opportunity Provider. 

2

mailto:nmonck@cityofwillows.org
mailto:nmonck@cityofwillows.org
mailto:nmonck@cityofwillows.org
mailto:rthomas@cityofwillows.org
http://www.cityofwillows.org/


PUBLIC COMMENT & 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

FORUM 

3



 Agenda Item #6a.

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



Agenda Item #6b. 

City Council 
Rick Thomas, Mayor 

David Vodden, Vice Mayor 
Gary Hansen, Council Member 
Jeff Williams, Council Member 

Casey Hofhenke, Council Member 

City Manager 
Marti Brown 

City Clerk 
Vacant 

Willows City  
Council Meeting 
Draft Action Minutes 
April 11, 2023 201 North Lassen Street 

Willows, CA 95988 
(530) 934-7041

1. CALL TO ORDER - 6:00 PM

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL
Councilmembers Present: Councilmembers Hansen, Hofhenke and Williams, Vice Mayor Vodden, and
Mayor Thomas. 

4. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
Item 7a, presentation of 2021 NBS Sewer Rate Study, moved to after Consent Calendar.

5. PUBLIC COMMENT & CONSENT CALENDAR FORUM
a. Register Approval

Pulled – moved to after Item 6.a

b. Minutes Approval
Action: Approve minutes of the March 28, 2023, City Council meeting and April 6, 2023 Special
City Council meeting.
Moved/Seconded:  Vice Mayor Vodden, Councilmember Hansen
Yes:  Vice Mayor Vodden, Councilmembers Hansen, Hofhenke and Williams, Mayor Thomas

c. Purchase Flexibility for the Acquisition of a new Flat Bed Pickup, or Cab & Chassis
Pulled – moved to after Item 6.a.

7.a. Overview: 2021 NBS Sewer Rate Study
  Action: Received presentation of the 2021 NBS Sewer Rate Study; no other action taken. 

6. PRESENTATION
a. FY 2023-24 Budget – Proposed Budget Additions and Changes

Action: Received staff presentation.

13



  
      2 

 

             5.a. Register Approval  
                     Action: Approve general checking, payroll, and direct deposit check registers.  
                     Moved/Seconded: Councilmember Williams, Vice Mayor Vodden 

        Yes:  Councilmember Williams, Vice Mayor Vodden, Councilmembers Hansen and Hofhenke,        
        Mayor Thomas 

 
5.c Purchase Flexibility for the Acquisition of a new Flat Bed Pickup, or Cab & Chassis 

 Action: Adopt resolution to approve purchase flexibility of a F550 truck to similar model 
 Moved/Seconded:  Councilmembers Hansen and Williams 
 Yes:   Councilmembers Hansen, Williams and Hofhenke, Vice Mayor Vodden and Mayor Thomas           
 (Roll Call vote)  
 

7. DISCUSSION & ACTION CALENDAR 
c. City Swimming Pool Repairs 

Action: Staff directed to undergo the minimum pool repairs necessary to open the city pool, 
using the source of funds listed in the Staff report and issue a Request for Proposals.   
Moved/Seconded:  Vice Mayor Vodden and Councilmember Hofhenke 
Yes:  Vice Mayor Vodden, Councilmembers Hansen, Hofhenke, Williams, Mayor Thomas 
 

b. City Council Swimming Pool Ad Hoc Committee 
Action: Ad Hoc Committee provided update on current progress; no other action taken.  
 

8. COMMENTS & REPORTS 
a. City Council Correspondence 
Letter from Mr. Forrest J. Sprague regarding Presentation of NBS Wastewater Rate 
 
b. City Council Comments & Reports 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT – 8:38 PM 

  

 

______________________________ 
Marti Brown, City Manager  

 
  

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



Agenda Item #6b. 

City Council 
Rick Thomas, Mayor 

David Vodden, Vice-Mayor 
Jeff Williams, Councilmember 
Gary Hansen, Councilmember 

Casey Hofhenke, Councilmember 

City Manager 
Marti Brown 

City Clerk 
Vacant 

Willows City Council 
Special Meeting 
Draft Action Minutes 
April 18, 2023 201 North Lassen Street 

Willows, CA 95988 
(530) 934-7041

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 PM

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL
Councilmembers Present:  Councilmembers Hansen, Williams and Hofhenke, Vice-Mayor Vodden and
Mayor Thomas 

Mayor Thomas noted the attendance of the newly appointed City Attorney, Carolyn Walker of the 
Prentice Long law firm. 

4. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
City Manager Marti Brown stated the matter before the City Council was to be a presentation and study
session - not a discussion and action item.

5. PRESENTATION
a. Cal Water Rate Structure, Proposed Cal Water Main Connection to City Wells & the Cost to Operate
the City’s Water Enterprise Fund.
Cal Water staff present:  Tavis Beynon, Shannon McGovern, Kevin McCusker and Meaghann Tenuta.
Assemblymember James Gallagher staff present: Braden Pisani, District Representative

Action: Received presentations from Cal Water staff and City staff; City Attorney was asked to review 
Area of Benefits for council information; no public comment. 

6. CLOSED SESSION
a. Title: City Attorney; PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION;
Government Code Section 54957
Action: No reportable action.

7. ADJOURNMENT – 8:42 PM

Dated: April 19, 2023 

  ______________________________ 
Marti Brown, City Manager 

24



_____________________________________________________________________ 

Date: April 25, 2023 

To: Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 

From: Nathan Monck, Fire Chief 

Marti Brown, City Manager 

Subject: Annual Weed and Garbage Abatement Schedule 

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution declaring weeds, garbage, refuse and dirt public nuisances; and approve the 

attached Weed and Garbage Abatement Schedule for the 2023 fire season. 

Rationale for Recommendation: 

Weed Abatement and garbage removal is an integral part of Willows Fire Departments mission to 

protect lives, property, and environment. With limited fire department staffing, emphasis must be 

placed on prevention. By removing hazardous fuels, Willows Fire Department has a greater chance of 

suppressing fires before they become large and unmanageable.  

Background: 

Each year the Willows Fire Department abates weeds, garbage, refuse and dirt City parcels and 

alleyways.  To initiate this process, the City Council must adopt a resolution declaring that weeds, 

garbage, refuse and dirt are a public nuisance and schedule a hearing date. Attached is a 2023 abatement 

schedule.  

Discussion & Analysis: 

In addition to commercial and residential buildings, Willows is also home to the County of Glenn’s only 

acute care facility, emergency dispatch center, jail, and other vital emergency infrastructure. As a 

result, it is critical that the City of Willows remain vigilant in its effort to prevent and reduce fires 

throughout the city limits and immediate surrounding unincorporated County. Weed Abatement 

activities prevent fires, blight, and other costly negative impacts potentially saving the city hundreds of 

thousands of dollars per year. The weed abatement program also improves the City of Willows 

insurance rating, ensuring homeowners receive the most competitive fire insurance rates. The initial 

assessment was completed the week of April 10 and many properties on the list may have already 

                       
Agenda Item #6c.

25



 

been abated. Staff will continue to monitor weed abatement progress and work to update the list as 

time allows. 

Fiscal Impact: 

While the exact fiscal impact is unknown, it is anticipated that the City will spend approximately 

$40,000 in mandated abatement costs. All costs associated with Weed Abatement, and other 

hazardous fuels reduction will be reimbursable through the previously awarded CAL FIRE Hazardous 

Fuels Reduction Grant. This includes staff salaries, benefits, a new staff vehicle, mailers, postage, and 

other consumables. 

Attachments: 

Attachment 1: 2023 Weed Abatement Schedule 

Attachment 2: Resolution declaring public nuisances for 2023 fire season 

Attachment 3: Initial Weed Abatement Survey 

Attachment 4: Weed Abatement Bid Form 

 

26



Exhibit A  Attachment 1 

WEED AND GARBAGE ABATEMENT 

2023 FIRE SEASON 

Initial weed and garbage abatement survey to be completed and ready for submission by April 20, 2023. 

April 25, 2023 Council adopts resolution declaring weeds and garbage a nuisance, approves 

May 23, 2023 as the date for the hearing to Protest, and July 25, 2023 as the 

date for hearing to confirm cost, and declare costs a lien against the property as 

of August 4, 2023. 

April 26, 2023 Begin to solicit bits for the 2023 Weed Abatement Contractor. Notice of bid 

solicitation will be posted 3 times (April 29, May 3, May 6). 

May 12, 2023 Bid for Weed Abatement Contractor Closes- 2:00PM. 

May 11, 2023 Last day to deliver the Notice of Public Hearing to Protest to the paper for the 

May 23, 2023 Council Meeting (Publication will be May 13, 2023, 10 days prior 

to the public hearing).  

May 23, 2023 6:00 PM Hearing on protest. Council orders abatement. Award contract to 

abate. 

May 24, 2023 Resurvey City for weed abatement progress. 

June 2, 2023 Last Day for property owner to complete abatement. 

June 5, 2023 City Contractor begins abatement. 

July 5, 2023 All invoices mailed by this date. 

July 13, 2023 Last day to deliver Notice of Public Hearing to Protest to the paper for July 25 

Council Meeting (Publication date will be July 15, 10 days prior to public 

hearing). 

July 22, 2023  Posting of individual abatement costs at City Hall at least 3 days prior to hearing 

to confirm report and declare cost of lien. 

July 25, 2023 Public Hearing to Protest. Adopt Resolution confirming costs and declaring costs 

of lien against property as of August 4, 2023.  

August 7, 2023 Transmit abatement cost to auditors office for inclusion on taxes. Owner has 10 

days from date of hearing (July 25, 2023) to pay assessment directly to the city 

prior to transmittal to auditor. 

  

 

27



City of Willows  

Resolution xx-2023 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS 
DECLARING PUBLIC NUISANCES FOR 2023 FIRE SEASON 

WHEREAS, there exists in the City of Willows private property upon which there are growing weeds 
and upon which there exists weeds, garbage, refuse, and dirt; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Willows has determined that such weeds, garbage, refuse and 
dirt constitute a public nuisance and should be abated; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Willows as follows: 

1. That all weeds growing upon private property and all garbage, refuse and dirt upon private
property within the City of Willows are hereby declared to be public nuisances.

2. That such weeds, garbage, refuse and dirt are growing upon or are upon parcels of private
described in the report attached hereto and marked Attachment 3 and by this reference
made a part hereof.

3. That said nuisances shall be abated as provided by Section 39560 and 39588 of the
Government Code of the State of California, and pursuant thereto the Fire Chief of the City
of Willows shall give notice as provided by section 39564 through 39567, inclusive of said
Government Code

4. That the City Council of the City of Willows hereby fixes Tuesday, May 23, 2023 at 6:00 PM
in the City Council Chambers, Civic Center, Willows, California as the time and place of
hearing any objections to the proposed removal of weeds, garbage, refuse, and dirt herein
and above declared to be public nuisances.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willows this 25th day of April 2023, by the 
following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

APPROVED: ATTESTED: 

_________________________ _________________________ 
Richard Thomas, Mayor Marti Brown , Acting City Clerk 

Attachment 2

28



Attachment 3

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 2023 
1 

CITY OF WILLOWS - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Contractor 

______________________________________________ 

Project Title 

WEED ABATEMENT SERVICES 

Budget Account Number 

301-4130.150 

THIS CONTRACTUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (Agreement) is entered into on 

_____________, 2023, between the City of Willows, a municipal corporation under the laws of 

the State of California, (City) and ______________________, an individual, dba 

_____________________________, hereinafter referred to as "Contractor". 

Attachment 4

49



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 2023 

2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

            Section/Title        Page No. 

SECTION 1 - DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 3 

SECTION 2 - SCOPE OF CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - BASIC 3 

SECTION 3 - SCOPE OF CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - ADDITIONAL 3 

SECTION 4 - COMPENSATION 3 

SECTION 5 - RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTOR 4 

SECTION 6 - RESPONSIBILITY OF CITY 4 

SECTION 7 - INDEMNIFICATION 5 

SECTION 8 - INSURANCEPROVISIONS 5 

SECTION 9 - GENERAL PROVISIONS 5 

9.1-Access to Records 5 

9.2- Assignment 5 

9.3- Compliance with Laws, Rules, Regulations 5 

9.4- Exhibits Incorporated 6 

9-5- Independent Contractor 6 

9-6 Permits and License 6  

9.7-Patents 6  

9.8 - Integration, Amendment 6  

9.9- Control of Services - Direction 6 

9.10- Interpretation of Specifications 7 

9.11- Notice to Proceed; Progress; Completion 7 

9.12- Subcontracts   7 

9.13- Term; Extension; Termination   7  

9.14- Notice                                                                                  8 
 

Exhibit A 10  
Exhibit B 11 
Exhibit C 14 
Exhibit D 17 
Exhibit E 19 

 

 

 

 

50



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 2023 

3 

SECTION 1 - DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

City desires to undertake that certain project (Project) described in EXHIBIT "A," entitled 

"DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT," and Contractor agrees to provide City, at its own cost and 

expense, all services and furnish all labor and materials necessary to complete in a good, 

professional and substantial manner, the contractual services indicated and described in 

SECTIONS 2 and 3, respectively.  

 

SECTION 2 - SCOPE OF CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - BASIC 

Contractor shall perform those basic contractual services in connection with the Project as are 

set forth more particularly in EXHIBIT "B," entitled "SCOPE OF CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - 

BASIC.  

 

SECTION 3 - SCOPE OF CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - ADDITIONAL 

City and Contractor agree that it may be necessary for Contractor to perform or secure the 

performance of related contractual services other than those set forth herein. In such instance, 

Contractor shall advise City, in advance and in writing, of the need for such additional 

contractual services, their cost and the estimated time (if appropriate) required to perform 

them. Contractor shall not proceed to perform any such additional service until City has 

determined that such service is beyond the scope of the basic contractual services to be 

provided by Contractor and has given its written authorization to perform or obtain it. Each 

additional service so authorized shall constitute an amendment to this Agreement, shall be 

identified and sequentially numbered as "Amendment No. 1" and so forth, shall be subject to all 

of the provisions of this Agreement, and shall be incorporated into EXHIBIT "B," accordingly.  

 

SECTION 4 - COMPENSATION 

Contractor shall be compensated for contractual services rendered to City pursuant to this 

Agreement periodically at the rate as set forth in EXHIBIT "C," entitled "COMPENSATION," and 

in accordance with all other applicable provisions of this Agreement. Amounts due to Contractor 

from City for contractual services rendered shall be evidenced by the submission to City by 

Contractor of an invoice, prepared in a form satisfactory to City, setting forth the amount of 

compensation due for the period covered by it. Each such invoice shall be forwarded to City so 

as to reach it on or before the 15th day of the month next following the month or months, or other 

applicable period, for which the contractual services invoiced were provided. City will make 

51



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 2023 

4 

payment on each such invoice within 45 days of receipt of it. However, if Contractor submits an 

invoice which is incorrect, incomplete or not in accord with the provisions of this Agreement, 

then City shall not be obligated to process any payment to Contractor until a correct and 

complying invoice has been submitted.  

 

SECTION 5 - RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTOR 

By executing this Agreement, Contractor warrants to City that Contractor possesses, or will 

arrange to secure from others, all of the necessary professional capabilities, experience, 

resources and facilities necessary to provide to City the professional services contemplated 

under this Agreement. In procuring the professional services of others to assist Contractor in 

performing the professional services set forth at EXHIBIT "B" or additional professional services 

under SECTION 3 of this Agreement, Contractor shall not employ or otherwise obtain the 

professional services of any person or entity known to Contractor or City to have, or be likely to 

develop during the term of this Agreement, an interest that is personally, or professionally, or 

financially adverse to any interest of City. Contractor further warrants that Contractor will follow 

the best current, generally accepted professional practices to make findings, render opinions, 

prepare factual presentations, and provide professional advice and recommendations regarding 

this Project for which professional services are rendered under this Agreement.  

 

SECTION 6 - RESPONSIBILITY OF CITY 

To the extent appropriate to the contractual services contemplated by this Agreement, The City 

shall: 

6.1 Guarantee access to and make all provisions for Contractor to enter upon City 

and Private property as required for Contractor to perform Contractor's contractual 

services. 

6.2 Designate in writing a person(s) to act as City's representative with respect to the 

services to be performed under this Agreement. Such person(s) shall have complete 

authority to transmit instructions, receive information, interpret, and define City's policies 

and decisions with respect to materials, equipment, elements, and systems pertinent to 

Contractor's contractual services. 

6.3 Give prompt written notice to Contractor whenever City observes or otherwise 

becomes aware of any defect in the contractual services. 

 

52



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 2023 

5 

SECTION 7 - INDEMNIFICATION 

Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City and its City Council, officers, 

employee and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses, 

including litigation costs and attorney fees, arising out of performance of the work described 

herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the contractor, any sub-

contractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any 

of them may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful 

misconduct of the City. 

 

SECTION 8 - INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

Any requirements by City that Contractor carry general liability or any other type of 

insurance in connection  with the services to be performed and/or contractual services to 

be rendered by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT 

"D," entitled "INSURANCE PROVISIONS."  

 

SECTION 9 - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 9.1 Access to Records 

Contractor shall maintain all books, records, documents, accounting ledgers and similar 

materials relating to services performed for City under this Agreement on file for at least 

four years following the date of final payment to Contractor by City. Any duly authorized 

representative(s) of City shall have access to such records for the purpose of inspection, 

audit and copying at reasonable times during Contractor's usual and customary business 

hours, Contractor shall provide proper facilities to City's representative(s) for such access 

and inspection. Contractor shall be entitled to reasonable compensation for time and 

expenses related to such access and inspection activities, which shall be considered to be 

an additional service to City, falling under the provisions of SECTION 3 hereinabove. 

 

 9.2 Assignment 

This Agreement is binding on the heirs, successors and assigns of the parties hereto 

and shall not be assigned by either City or Contractor without the prior written consent 

of the other.  

 

9.3 Compliance with Laws. Rules, Regulations 

53



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 2023 

6 

All contractual services performed by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall be 

performed in accordance and full compliance with all applicable Federal, State, or City 

statutes and any rules or regulations promulgated thereunder. 

  

 9.4 Exhibits Incorporated 

All Exhibits referred to in this Agreement and attached to it are hereby incorporated in it 
by this reference. 

  

 9.5 Independent Contractor 

City and Contractor agree that the relationship between them created by this Agreement 

is that of an employer-independent contractor. Contractor shall be solely responsible for 

the conduct and control of the services performed under this Agreement. Contractor shall 

be free to render contractual services to others during the term of this Agreement, so long 

as such activities do not interfere with or diminish Contractor's ability to fulfill the 

obligations established herein to City. 

  

 9.6 Permits and Licenses 

Contractor shall procure all permits and licenses, pay all charges, assessments and fees  

 

9.7 Patents 

Contractor shall assume all responsibilities arising from the use of patented materials, 

equipment, devices or processes used on or incorporated in the services. 

  

 9.8 Integration: Amendment 

This Agreement represents the entire understanding of City and Contractor as to those 

matters contained herein. No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or 

effect with respect to those matters covered in it. This Agreement may not be modified or 

altered except by amendment in writing signed by both parties. 

  

 9.9 Control of Services - Direction 

City representative(s) designated pursuant to Subsection 6.2 of this Agreement shall 

decide all questions which may arise as to the quality or acceptability of materials 

furnished and services performed and as to the manner of performance and rate of 

54



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 2023 

7 

progress of the services, all questions which arise as to the interpretation of the 

specifications, all questions as to the acceptable fulfillment of this Agreement on the part 

of the Contractor and all questions as to claims and compensation. 

  

 9.10 Interpretation of Specifications 

Should it appear that the services to be done or any matter relative thereto is not 

sufficiently detailed or explained in any specifications, special provisions, and/or related 

documents, Contractor shall apply to the City for such further explanations as may be 

necessary and shall conform to such explanations or interpretations as part of this 

Agreement, so far as may be consistent with their original intent. In the event of doubt or 

question relative to the true meaning of the specifications, reference shall be made to the 

City's representative(s), whose decision thereon shall be final. 

  

 9.11 Notice to Proceed; Progress: Completion 

Upon execution of this Agreement by the parties, City shall give Contractor notice to 

proceed with the services. Such notice may authorize Contractor to render all of the 

contractual services contemplated herein, or such portions or phases as may be mutually 

agreed upon. In the latter event, City shall, in its sole discretion, issue subsequent 

notices from time to time regarding further portions or phases of the services. Upon 

receipt of such notices, Contractor shall diligently proceed with the services as 

authorized. 

  

 9.12 Subcontracts 

Contractor shall be entitled, to the extent determined appropriate by Contractor, to 

subcontract any portion of the services to be performed under this Agreement. 

Contractor shall be responsible to City for the actions of persons and firms performing 

subcontract services. The subcontracting of services by Contractor shall not relieve 

Contractor, in any manner, of the obligations and requirements imposed upon Contractor 

by this Agreement. 

  

 9.13 Term: Extension: Termination 

55



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 2023 

8 

The initial term of this Agreement shall commence upon City's issuance to Contractor of a 

notice to proceed for all or a portion of the contractual services, as hereinabove provided, 

and terminate 12 months from the date of such notice to proceed. 

This Agreement may be extended for two additional periods of 12 months, upon execution 

of an amendment by the City and Contractor providing therefor. For each succeeding 12-

month term of this Agreement, Contractor may request City to adjust the compensation 

rate(s) during such term. Contractor's request for such an adjustment shall be filed with 

City no later than January 15, and shall be accompanied by such documentation, 

including, but not limited to, financial reports and records, operational cost data, and the 

like, as may be required by City to enable it to satisfactorily evaluate and make a 

determination upon it. Nothing hereinabove, however, shall require City to make any 

adjustment therefore in response to Contractor's request. Further, in no event shall any 

such adjustment exceed an amount equal to 75 percent of the increase in the Consumer 

Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) - U.S. City Average - as published by the 

Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor, for the most recent available 

previous 12-month period. As an example, if such Index increased 10 percent for a 

preceding 12-month period, an annual adjustment could not exceed 7.5 percent 

regardless of whether or not the Contractor's documented costs exceed 7.5 percent.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may, in its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement at 

any time and for any reason whatsoever by giving at least 10 days prior written notice of 

such termination to Contractor. In this latter event, Contractor shall be entitled to 

compensation for all service rendered and services performed for City to the date of such 

termination.  

 

9.14 Notice 

Any notices required to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be deemed to have 

been given by their deposit, postage prepaid, in the United States Postal Service or, 

alternatively, by personal delivery or overnight courier service addressed to the parties as 

follows: 

To City:  

City Manager  
City of Willows 
201 N Lassen St 
Willows, CA 95988-3406 

 

56



Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 2023 
9 

  To Contractor: 

This Agreement shall include all special provisions, if any, as are set forth on EXHIBIT "E," 

entitled "SPECIAL PROVISIONS." IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have 

executed this Agreement on the date set forth above. 

CITY OF WILLOWS: CONTRACTOR: 

_________________________ ___________________________ 
By:     Marti Brown By:   

City Manager Owner 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

_____________________________ ________________________
Carolyn Walker  Nathan Monck 

City Attorney Fire Chief 

The City of Willows is an Equal Opportunity Provider 



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 2023 

10 

 
 

CITY OF WILLOWS - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Contractor 

____________________________________ 

Project Title 

WEED ABATEMENT SERVICES 

Budget Account Number 

301-4130.150 

EXHIBIT "A" 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

Contractor shall provide weed, debris and vegetation removal services to the City of Willows for 
the period of May 23, 2023  through May 30,2024. 

Areas under the protection of State and Federal environmental agencies shall be cleared as 
outlined in Section 1.5, Subsection B "Grading/Disturbance Restrictions - Protected Areas" 
of Exhibit “B”. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 
2023 

11 

 CITY OF WILLOWS - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Contractor 

____________________________________ 

Project Title 

WEED ABATEMENT SERVICES 

Budget Account Number 

301-4130.150 
 

EXHIBIT "B" 

SCOPE OF CONTRACTUAL SERVICES BASIC 

Scope of Contractual Services - Basic 

The Contractor shall provide contractual services as follows: 

1.1 The removal of noxious weeds, debris, and combustible vegetation shall be 
done in accordance with State and City regulations governing materials and/or 
conditions which may be damaging to the public health and safety. Specific procedures 
exist which must be followed. One of the established procedures provides that the 
City may authorize the removal of noxious weeds, debris, and combustible vegetation 
from parcels of land, in the event that the property owner fails to do so after having 
been properly notified. 

Property owners have a specific amount of time in which to remove weeds, debris, and 
combustible vegetation before the City Council may order the abatement of those 
hazardous or unwanted conditions by a Weed Abatement contractor working on 
behalf of the City. 

This scope of services establishes the nature of the work to be done and the 
conditions relating to such work. At this time, the City of Willows Fire Department does 
not know which private properties will be "owner-cleared" or those which will be "City-
cleared" along with properties owned by the City. Therefore, an exact list of properties 
to be "cleared" by the contractor cannot be provided until after such time as the City 
Council authorizes a final list of properties to be cleared. 

PERFORMANCE OF WORK 

1.2 Contractor must remove all weeds, debris, and combustible vegetation within 
twenty (20) working days of being provided with the list of properties to be cleared. 

Contractor shall be responsible for complying with all City, State, and Federal 
statutory requirements relating to the removal of weeds, debris, and unwanted 
vegetation. 

59



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 
2023 

12 

Complete abatement is required for parcels up to and including 5 acres. This 
abatement may be performed by discing, scraping, grading or mowing. 

 
BURNING PROHIBITED 
 
1.3 The City of Willows Municipal Code prohibits burning of materials such as the 
type which would be encountered by Contractors performing this work for the City. 
Therefore, all cut grass, cut weeds, and debris referenced in "scope of services" 
performed as a result of this contract, shall be hauled from parcels and disposed of in 
a legal manner. 

SAFETY PRECAUTIONS 

1.4 Contractor shall exercise care when working near dry vegetation and shall make 
certain that equipment is in a good state of repair and equipped with approved spark 
arresters and mufflers, where required. Contractor shall also keep readily available, at 
each work location, the following items of fire protection equipment. 

A. Two 2-1/2 gallon pressured-water fire extinguishers or equivalent means 
of extinguishing any small grass fire which could occur or be observed; 
B. One long-handle round-point shovel; and 
C. Cell phone (ability to contact 9-1-1 in case of an emergency). 

NATURE OF SERVICES 

1.5 The following categories are those which represent the type of services 
which is required (or may be required) to be performed at the various 
parcels throughout the City. 

A.  ABATEMENT REQUIRED 

 Complete abatement is required for parcels up to and including 5 acres. 
This abatement may be performed by discing, scraping, grading or 
mowing. 

1. COMPLETE CLEARING OR MOWING OF PARCELS OF FIVE 
 ACRES OR LESS 

(a)    All parcels of 5 acres or less must be completely cleared or 
mowed. 
(b)    Parcels may be mowed in such a manner that the distance 
from the top of the stubble/residue to the ground is six inches 
(6") or less. 
(c)   Abatement along roads, sidewalk, or other such natural or 
manmade breaks,         shall start at the edge of the property 
line. 
(d)   Flammable vegetation remaining after mowing must be 
removed from roads, parcels and sidewalks by the Contractor. 
(e)   Trees, stumps, rock piles, and other items not referenced 
as "debris" will be allowed to remain in vacant fields, lots, 
parcels. 
(f)  Contractor is responsible for checking for any depressions, pits, 
holes, debris, etc., which may be a hazard or pose a restriction to 
contractor or equipment. Non-clearance of these areas must be 
approved by the City. 

Note:     The use of a weed eater may be required to achieve the 
necessary results due to obstacles that may be in the way. 

2. FIREBREAKS (PARCELS OVER 5 ACRES) 

60



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 
2023 

13 

(a) All parcels over 5 acres must have a full perimeter firebreak. 
(b) Firebreaks may be disced, scraped or graded to bare earth to a 

minimum width of 30 feet. 
(c) Firebreaks shall be prepared in weeds, grass, star thistle, 

etc. 
(d) Firebreaks along roads, sidewalks, or other such natural or 

manmade breaks, shall start at the edge of such breaks. 
(e) Flammable vegetation remaining after the creation of a 

firebreak must be removed from roads and sidewalks by 
the Contractor. 

(f) Parcels over 5 acres that contain homes or other buildings 
require a minimum 30 foot firebreak around any structures. 

(g) Trees, stumps, rock piles, and other items not referenced as 
"debris" will be allowed to remain in vacant fields, lots, 
parcels. 

(h)     Contractor is responsible for checking for any depressions, 
pits, holes, debris, etc., which may be a hazard or pose a 
restriction to contractor or its equipment. Non-clearance of these 
areas must be approved by the City. 

Note: Mowing, or the use of a weed eater, may be required to 
achieve the necessary results due to obstacles that may be in the 
way. 

B. GRADING/DISTURBANCE RESTRICTIONS - PROTECTED AREAS 

Due to restrictions established by State and Federal environmental 
agencies, discing, scraping or grading of the soil in protected areas is not 
allowed, nor is the use of any chemical or pesticide. Mowing equipment 
with rubber tires will be acceptable. Operating equipment in wet soil shall 
be avoided. Weeds must be mowed to a height of approximately six 
inches on properties of five acres or less. If a parcel consists of more 
than five acres, a mowed 36 foot wide full perimeter firebreak shall be 
used in lieu of discing or scraping. Protected areas will be noted on a 
map provided by the City of Willows Planning Department. 

 

C. REMOVAL OF DEBRIS 

1. Debris can be expected to consist of tree pruning piles, scrap 
lumber piles, furniture, refrigerator, etc., but should not include any 
significant amount of dirt, large rocks, or other "difficult to handle" matter.    

D. DUMP BOX SERVICES 

1. The use of a dump box in connection with clearing any parcel 
must be requested by Contractor in advance on a per parcel basis. Upon 
inspection of the property by City, and determination that the request is 
reasonable, the City of Willows Fire Department may approve the use of 
a dump box in connection with clearing any parcel. Approval of the 
request to use a dump box must be pre-authorized by City in writing. 

 
E. Documentation 

1. The Contractor must obtain photos of nuisances prior to abating, 
and obtain photos after the nuisances have been abated. Photos 
shall be returned to the City at the conclusion of the abatement 
process. Photos shall be labeled in a fashion that easily shows what 
parcel the photos were taken at. EXAMPLE. Photos 1-8 : 1234 Main 
St, APN 000-000-000.  

61



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 2023 

14 

CITY OF WILLOWS - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Contractor 

____________________________________ 

Project Title 

WEED ABATEMENT SERVICES 

Budget Account Number 

301-4130.150 

EXHIBIT"C" 

COMPENSATION 

Total maximum compensation for the services outlined in this Agreement shall not exceed    
$40,000. In the event the amount of abatement work presented to the Contractor by 
the City exceeds the limit of $40,000, the contractor MUST notify the Fire Chief, who 
must receive authorization to exceed limit by City Council, and receive written 
authorization prior to preforming the additional work. Failure to do so may result in 
non-payment. 

COMPENSATION 

1.1 Contractor shall be compensated for the work outlined herein pursuant to the attached 
Contractor's Abatement Pricing (as submitted by contractor) and dated May 23rd 2023. 
Compensation shall not exceed $40,000,00 without written authorization of City upon receipt 
of 30 days advance notice provided by Contractor. 

TERMS OF PAYMENT 
1.2 Contractor must provide two (2) copies of an invoice for each parcel cleared by 
Contractor.   Invoices must be submitted to the City of Willows Fire Chief or Designee no later 
than ten(10) days following completion of the last parcel to be cleared. Invoices shall state 
date of service, Assessor's Parcel Number, location of parcel, and actual work done by 
Contractor, i.e.; areas done, method of work done (discing, scraping, mowing, debris 
removal, etc.) and cost of work performed by Contractor at that location. 

City of Willows Fire Department will furnish Contractor with a list of Assessor's Parcel 
Numbers and locations of parcels where clearing is required. 

 

62



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 2023 

15 

 

 

 

CONTRACTOR'S ABATEMENT PRICING 
 
DUMP BOX SERVICES: (requires written notification from city)    Price Per Parcel 
 

               0-3  Cubic Yards  $ 
 
                4-6  Cubic Yards  $ 
 
                7-10  Cubic Yards  $        

 
  
DEBRIS REMOVAL: (requires written notification from city)         Price Per Parcel 
 

0-3  Cubic Yards  $ 
 
4-6  Cubic Yards  $ 
 
7-10  Cubic Yards  $       

 
PARCEL MOWING:      Price Per Parcel 
 

      0 -2,500  Square Feet  $ 
  
 2,501 -5000  Square Feet  $ 
 
 5,001 -7,500  Square Feet  $ 
 
 7,501 -10,000  Square Feet  $ 
 
 10,001 -21,840   Square Feet  $ 
 
  ½ -1  Acre   $ 
  
  1-2  Acre   $ 
 
  3-4  Acre   $ 
 
  4-5  Acre   $ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

63



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 
2023 

16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
FIREBREAKS:      Price Per Parcel 
 

          Length of Fire Break  30 ft Width of Fire Break 
  0 -100    $ 

  101 -300    $ 

  301 -500    $ 

  501 -800    $ 

  801 -1,000    $ 

  1,001 -1,200    $ 

  1,200 -1,400    $ 

  1,401 -1,600    $ 

  1,801 -2,000    $ 

  2,001 -2,500    $ 

  2,501 -3,000    $ 

  3,001 -3,500    $ 

  3,501 -5,000    $ 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

64



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 
2023 

17 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF WILLOWS - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Contractor: 

____________________________________________ 

Project Title: 

WEED ABATEMENT SERVICES 

Budget Account Number 

301-4130.150 

EXHIBIT "D"  

INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

General Liability Insurance 

Contractor shall obtain commercial general liability insurance (occurrence policy 
form) from one or more U.S. domiciled insurance companies licensed to do business 
in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating of "B" or better or, in the 
alternative, an unlicensed U.S. domiciled company or companies with an "A" rating, 
which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage 
liability in the amount of at least $I,000,000 per occurrence, and $2,000,000 in the 
aggregate, with a maximum policy deductible of $5,000. 

The insurance coverage required herein shall be evidenced by a certificate of 
insurance with policy endorsements and shall be executed by an authorized official 
of the insureds). In addition to the limits of coverage described above, the 
certificate of insurance shall provide that the insurer shall provide to City at least 30 
days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage, or 10 days prior 
notice of cancellation for non-payment. 

Contractor acknowledges and agrees that City of Willows, its officers, boards and 
commissions, and members thereof, its employees and agents, are covered as 
additional insureds with respect to any liability arising out of the activities of 
Contractor as the named insured. Such additional insured status shall be 
evidenced by a policy endorsement executed by an authorized official of the 
insurer(s). A blanket endorsement which provides additional insured status to any 

65



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 
2023 

18 

person or organization with whom Contractor, as named insured, has entered into a 
written contract, such as this Agreement, shall satisfy this requirement. 

The insurance coverage required herein shall be primary insurance with respect to 
the City of Willows, its officers, officials and employees. Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the City of Willows, its officers, officials or employees shall 
be in excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by the insurance 
coverage required herein and shall not contribute to any loss. Such primary 
insurance status shall be evidenced by a policy endorsement issued by an 
authorized official of the insurer(s). In the alternative, a letter issued by an 
authorized official of the insureds) and copies of the pertinent page(s) of the policy 
shall satisfy this requirement. 

 

Automobile Liability Insurance 

Contractor shall obtain automobile liability insurance from one or more U.S. 
domiciled insurance companies licensed to do business in the State of California 
with an A.M. Best Company rating of "B" or better which provides coverage for bodily 
injury, personal injury, and property damage liability in the amount of at least 
$300,000 combined single limit for each occurrence. Evidence of such coverage 
shall be maintained by Contractor and provided to City upon request. 
Contractor shall require all subcontractors, who are performing services for 
Contractor under this Agreement, to obtain and maintain commercial general 
liability insurance and automobile liability insurance with the same minimum policy 
limits as set forth above for Contractor. Evidence of such overages shall be 
maintained by Contractor and provided to City upon request. 
 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
 
Contractor agrees to immediately supply the City of Willows with proof of 
Workers’ Compensation Coverage where required by state law. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

66



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 
2023 

19 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF WILLOWS - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Contractor: 

____________________________________ 

Project Title: 

WEED ABATEMENT SERVICES 

Budget Account Number 

301-4130.150 
 
 

EXHIBIT "E" 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

NONE. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67



   

 
                                                            Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 
2023 

20 

 
 
 
 

 

68



Agenda Item #6d. 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Date:   April 25, 2023 

To:   Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 

From:  Nate Monck, Fire Chief 

Marti Brown, City Manager 

Subject:  Approve Award of Bid - Grant Funded Staff Vehicle Upfit 

 

Recommendation: 

Approve award of bid and authorize the City Manager, or her designee, to purchase the 

equipment listed in estimate 301 from Superior Installs. 

Rationale for Recommendation:  

In accordance with the City of Willows Municipal Code (WMC), an RFP was prepared and 

circulated as described in WMC 3.05.090. Superior Installs was the only respondent and, as a 

result, determined to be the lowest responsible bidder. 

Background:  

In July of 2022, the City of Willows was awarded a CAL FIRE Wildfire Prevention grant, under 

the project name “Willows Hazardous Fuels Reduction”. This grant will provide for the entire 

cost of weed abatement and hazardous fuels abatement for the 2023, 2024 and 2025 fire 

seasons. Eligible expenses under this program include salaries, benefits, mandated abatement, 

prescribed fire operations, CEQA compliance, office supplies, and a new staff vehicle.  

Discussion & Analysis:  

At the conclusion of the sealed bidding process, only the following bid was received: 

▪ Superior Installs - $17,161.97.  

Staff circulated a notice to bidders in the local paper as required by WMC 3.05.090, as well as 

personally reached out to LEHR Auto of Sacramento, QTAC Fire of Chico, and Sutter Butte 

Communications of Yuba City. None of these local qualified bidders responded to the RFP. 

Superior Installs bid was determined to be complete, and includes all components required in 

the Request for Proposal.  

69



Agenda Item #6d. 

Fiscal Impact:  

There is no impact to the general fund, as this purchase is funded 100% by the already awarded 

CAL FIRE Wildfire Prevention Grant. The CAL FIRE Wildfire Prevention Grant does not require a 

local match. No City of Willows funds have been or will be used for the purchase of this vehicle. 

Attachment:  

▪ Attachment 1 – Superior Installs Quote  

70



Estimate
Date

4/5/2023

Estimate #

301

Name / Address

Willows Fire

Superior Installs

1465 Sandy Praire Ct. Ste E
Fortuna CA 95540

Project

Total

Description Qty Rate Total

Console ( W/Cup holder, cuuby and filler plates ) 753.36 753.36T
USB & 12v Power Outlet 126.00 126.00T
Arm Rest 114.53 114.53T
Lightbar, w/ Alley and Take down, Amber Traffic Advisor 2,025.00 2,025.00T
Led Spot light 628.29 628.29T
Hideaway lights Red 2 152.00 304.00T
Ultra Thin Surface Mount Grille Light 6 125.00 750.00T
RayZR Amber LED Traffic Advisor 659.75 659.75T
Siren Control 679.55 679.55T
0-6,000 MHz, 3/4" Mount Coax 2 31.90 63.80T
150-512 VHF Antenna with Spring 78.79 78.79T
Camper Shell 3,873.47 3,873.47T
Truck Vault 2,825.00 2,825.00T
Shipping TBD 0.00 0.00
Miscellaneous Hardware with Power Distribution & Relay 300.00 300.00T
Install Above equipment on 2023 Ram 1500 26 110.00 2,860.00
Tax 8.5% 8.50% 1,120.43

$17,161.97

Attachment 1

71



Agenda Item #6e. 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Date:   April 25, 2023 

To:   Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 

From:   Nate Monck, Fire Chief 

  Marti Brown, City Manager 

Subject:  Bid Award to Paint Fire Engine 5 

Recommendation: 

Approve attached recommended bid and authorize the City Manager, or her designee, to 

execute a contract and scope of work as identified in estimate 0007 to RJL Truck and Tractor. 

Rationale for Recommendation:  

In accordance with the City of Willows Municipal Code (WMC), an RFP was prepared and 

circulated as described in WMC 3.05.090. After reviewing bids, RJL Truck and Tractor was 

determined to be the lowest responsible bidder. 

Background:  

In December of 2022, the City of Willows was awarded a Type 3, Federal Excess Fire Engine, 

through the Federal Excess Procurement Program (FEPP). This allowed the City of Willows to 

accept delivery of a 2006 Fire Engine for local and mutual aide response. In order to use the 

equipment, the fire engine must be painted from its trademarked forest service green color to 

the color of the home agency.  

Discussion & Analysis:  

At the conclusion of the sealed bidding process, the following two bids were received:  

▪ RJL Truck and Tractor - $12,000, and  

▪ Bob’s Auto and Truck Painting - $18,158.78.  

Staff circulated a notice to bidders in the local paper as required by WMC 3.05.090. Staff also 

personally reached out to RJL Truck and Tractor of Oroville, Bobs Auto and Truck Painting of 

Red Bluff, Paulos Collision of Orland, R&R Auto of Willows. The RJL Truck and Tractor and Bobs 

Auto Painting were the only responsive bidders, with RJL Trucks quote being $6,158.78 less 

than the next highest bidder.  

72



Agenda Item #6e. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Willows City Council Approved up to $20,000 of general fund monies to refurbish the newly 

acquired Engine 5 as part of the Mid-Year Budget Adjustment. The rest of the required 

improvements to place Engine 5 into service will likely not exceed $6,000, completing the 

project under budget. 

Once Engine 5 is available for response, the City of Willows will have sufficient equipment to 

participate in the state mutual aid program, a potential source of revenue to subsidize future 

fire department costs. The current Office of Emergency Services (OES) reimbursement rate 

under the California Fire Assistance Agreement (CFAA) is $2,257.52 per day. The current CAL 

FIRE Assistance by Hire (ABH) reimbursement rate is $3,386.32 per day.    

Attachments:  

▪ Attachment 1: RJL Truck and Tractor Quote 

▪ Attachment 2: Bob’s Auto and Truck Painting Quote 

73



RJL TRJL Truck and Truck and Trractactoror
Ronald LaPlant

6251 Lincoln Blvd Oroville CA 95966

530-403-9752

RJLTruckandTractor@gmail.com

ESTIMAESTIMATETE

EST0007

DDAATETE

04/05/2023

TTOOTTALAL

USD $12,000.00

TTOO

WilloWillows Firws Fire Depare Departmenttment

nmonck@cityofwillows.org

DESCRIPTIONDESCRIPTION RARATETE QQTYTY AMOUNTAMOUNT

Base engine paint price starting at $10,000.00 0 $0.00

Engine paint price with door jams starting at $12,000.00 1 $12,000.00

TTOOTTALAL USD $12,000.00

Prices will vary depending on any body work

Base engine price includes base coat clear coat

Paint will be high automotive grade and can match to any of your liking

Attachment #1

74



Date:  4/ 5/2023 01:57 PM
Estimate ID: 2283

Estimate Version: 0
Preliminary

Profile ID: * HEAVY TRUCKS & RV'

BOB'S AUTO AND TRUCK PAINTING
11615 ANDREWS ST, RED BLUFF, CA  96080

(530) 527-1233
Fax:  (530) 527-2447

Email:  bobspainting2004@yahoo.com
Tax ID:  47-4067768   BAR #:  ARD00281199   EPA #:  PTO-028

Damage Assessed By: Gary Ford
Classification: None

Deductible: UNKNOWN
File Number: ?

Insured: ** NATHAN MONCK ** WILLOWS FIRE DEPARTMENT
Owner: WITHOUT CABINET INTERIORS 3-30-23, EMAILED TO NATHAN

Mitchell Service: 911000

Description: 06 INTERNATIONAL 7400 
VIN: 1HTCAZN17J426468

OEM/ALT: O Search Code: None

NOTE: ** ESTIMATE IS FOR DAMAGES CLEARLY VISIBLE AT TIME OF 
INSPECTION. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL DAMAGED FOUND AFTER DISASSEMBLY 
**

ESTIMATES ARE VALID FOR 30 DAYS FROM DATE WRITTEN. 

WE ARE NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR PART PRICE INCREASES. ALL ESTIMATE PARTS 

PRICING WILL BE BILLED THE "MANUFACTURES SUGGESTED RETAIL PRICE FROM 
INVOICE" OR ACTUAL COST PLUS 35% MARKUP, WHICH EVER IS GREATER.

**CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS ARE SUBJECT TO A 2.8% CONVENIENCE OF USE FEE**

Line Entry Labor Line Item Part Type/ Dollar Labor
Item Number Type Operation Description Part Number Amount Units

 Special/Manual Entry  
1 900500 BDY ACCESS/INSPECT NOTE: ESTIMATE WRITTEN TO FOR IMRON ELITE Existing 0.0**
2 BASE COAT, CLEAR COAT SYSTEM, CROSS REFERENCED
3 TO MATCH SIKKENS PAINT CODE FLNA3042 RED
4 900500 BDY ACCESS/INSPECT NOTE: ESTIMATE ASSUMES ALL LIGHTS AND TRIM RExisting 0.0**
5 BY OWNER PRIOR TO DROP AS INDICATED IN PHOTOS SENT
6 ESTIMATE DOES NOT INCLUDE ANY DENT OR DING REPAIR
7 ALL DENTS AND DINGS WILL SHOW.
8 900500 BDY ACCESS/INSPECT NOTE: ESTIMATE DOES NOT INCLUDE ANY DOT APP Existing 0.0**
9 ACCENT STRIPES OR LETTERING...
10 900500 BDY ACCESS/INSPECT ************************************************** Existing 0.0**
11 900500 BDY ADD'L LABOR OP PRESSURE WASH, DEGREASE-DEWAX Existing 2.0**
12 900500 BDY REMOVE/INSTALL HOOD Existing 2.0**
13 900500 BDY ADD'L LABOR OP REMOVE SLIVER TAPE BAND AND GLUE RESIDUE Existing 3.0**
14 900500 REF REFINISH/REPAIR PRIME AND BLOCK OLD STRIPE AREA SO OUTLINE Existing 4.0**

ESTIMATE RECALL NUMBER:  04/05/2023 13:54:56  2283
Mitchell Data Version: OEM:  JAN_23_V

Copyright (C) 1994 - 2023 Mitchell International Page 1 of 3
Software Version: 7.1.242 All Rights Reserved

Attachment #2

75



Date:  4/ 5/2023 01:57 PM
Estimate ID: 2283

Estimate Version: 0
Preliminary

Profile ID: * HEAVY TRUCKS & RV'
15         DOES NOT BLEED THROUGH
16 900500 BDY ADD'L LABOR OP PREP EXTERIOR, CABINET INTERIORS AND DOOR J Existing 43.0**
17         FOR PAINT FOR COLOR CHANGE TO RED
18 900500 REF REFINISH/REPAIR APPLY RED BASE COAT TO EXTERIOR Existing 30.0**
19 900500 REF REFINISH/REPAIR APPLY CLEAR COAT TO RED BASE Existing 6.0**
20 900500 REF REFINISH/REPAIR APPLY RED BASE COAT TO DOOR JAMBS Existing 3.5**
21 900500 REF REFINISH/REPAIR APPLY CLEAR COAT TO DOOR JAMBS Existing 1.8**
22 900500 BDY CHECK/ADJUST NOTE: CABINET JAMBS AND INTERIORS WILL Existing 0.0**
23         REMAIN GREEN....
24 900500 UD1 ADD'L LABOR OP CLEAN FOR DELIVERY Existing 1.5**

   Additional Costs & Materials   
25 936007  ADD'L COST Shop Materials 300.00  *
26 936013  ADD'L COST Spcl Paint Materials 250.00  *
27         RED PAINT TONER SURCHARGE
28 936021  ADD'L COST Additional Body Materials 65.00  *
29         DECAL ERASER WHEELS

   Additional Operations   
30 933017 REF ADD'L OPR Finish Sand And Buff 8.0*
31 933018 REF ADD'L OPR Mask For Overspray 45.00  * 3.0*

   Additional Costs & Materials   
32        ADD'L COST Paint/Materials 2,786.86  *
33        ADD'L COST Hazardous Waste Disposal 7.00  *

* - Judgment Item

Estimate Totals
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
Add'l
Labor Sublet

I. Labor Subtotals Units Rate Amount Amount Totals

Body 50.0 135.00  0.00  0.00  6,750.00  
Refinish 56.3 135.00  45.00  0.00  7,645.50  
User Def1 1.5 75.00  0.00  0.00  112.50  

Non-Taxable Labor 14,508.00  

Labor Summary 107.8 14,508.00  

II. Part Replacement Summary Amount

Total Replacement Parts Amount 0.00  

III. Additional Costs Amount

Taxable Costs 3,336.86  
Sales Tax @ 7.250% 241.92  

Non-Taxable Costs 72.00  

Total Additional Costs 3,650.78  

Paint Material Method: Rates
Init Rate = 61.52  , Init Max Hours = 99.9, Addl Rate = 59.52  

IV. Adjustments Amount

Customer Responsibility 0.00  

ESTIMATE RECALL NUMBER:  04/05/2023 13:54:56  2283
Mitchell Data Version: OEM:  JAN_23_V

Copyright (C) 1994 - 2023 Mitchell International Page 2 of 3
Software Version: 7.1.242 All Rights Reserved

76



Date:  4/ 5/2023 01:57 PM
Estimate ID: 2283

Estimate Version: 0
Preliminary

Profile ID: * HEAVY TRUCKS & RV'

I. Total Labor: 14,508.00  
II. Total Replacement Parts: 0.00  
III. Total Additional Costs: 3,650.78  

Gross Total: 18,158.78  

IV. Total Adjustments: 0.00  
Net Total: 18,158.78  

This is a preliminary estimate.
Additional changes to the estimate may be required for the actual repair.

Insurance Co: SELF PAY
Telephone: (888) 335-2722

I authorize Bob's Auto and Truck Painting to perform the above needed 
repairs to my vehicle and acknowledge receipt of the above estimate.  
Wear or damages not evident on the first inspection, may be discovered
 and you will be contacted for additional work.  Prices are subject to
 change without notice.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
   I have read and understand the above estimate and authorize repair 
services to be performed including sublet work.  An express Mechanic's
 Lien is hereby acknowledged on the above vehicle to secure the amount
 of repairs completed.

X ___________________________________________ DATE __________________

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COMPLETION: I HAVE INSPECTED THE COMPLETED WORK & 
CONFIRM THEY WERE DONE TO MY COMPLETE SATISFACTION. MY SIGNATURE ABOVE
 FUTHER ACTS AS A "DIRECTION TO PAY" FOR ANY OUTSTANDING SUPPLEMENT 
OWED TO SHOP.

X ___________________________________________ DATE __________________ 
 
 

ESTIMATE RECALL NUMBER:  04/05/2023 13:54:56  2283
Mitchell Data Version: OEM:  JAN_23_V

Copyright (C) 1994 - 2023 Mitchell International Page 3 of 3
Software Version: 7.1.242 All Rights Reserved

77



Agenda Item #6f. 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Date:   April 25, 2023 

To:   Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 

From:   Marti Brown, City Manager (on behalf of Mayor Rick Thomas) 

Subject:  Legal Services Agreement for City Attorney Services 

 

Recommendation: 

Approve the Legal Services Agreement for City Attorney services (Attachment 1) between the City of 

Willows and Prentice | Long, PC.  

Rationale for Recommendation: 

On February 9, 2023, the City Attorney and Cole Huber LLP resigned necessitating the search for a new 

law firm that could provide City Attorney services.  

Background:  

On February 9, 2023, Cole Huber LLP, the City’s contract attorney, tendered its 60-day resignation and, 

as a result, the search for a new City Attorney and/or law firm that could provide City Attorney services 

was initiated.  

Shortly after Cole Huber’s resignation, the City prepared and circulated a Request for Proposal that was 

due by March 27. Three proposals were received. The Council selected two firms to be interviewed on 

April 6.  

Discussion & Analysis:  

Based on the interviews and qualifications, the Council selected Prentice | Long, PC to represent the 

City effective Monday, April 10, 2023. Cole Huber LLP’s last day to provide City Attorney services was 

Friday, April 7, 2023.  

Fiscal Impact: 

The agreement includes a flat retainer of $9,165 per month or $109,980 per year. The Attorney rate is 

$190 per hour and paralegal rate is $90 per hour. Other special services and additions are further 

delineated in the agreement (Attachment 1).  

Attachment: 

▪ Attachment 1: Legal Services Agreement  

78



Attachment 1

79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

COMMENTS AND 
REPORTS 

109



Agenda Item #7a.

110


	RJL Truck and Tractor.pdf
	RJL Truck and Tractor
	To
	Willows Fire Department





